


 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF DELEGATES AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
Subject: Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 
V. Consent Agenda: 
A. Modification/Approval of the Board’s Agenda for September 21, 2022 
B. Approval of Minutes from the August 24, 2022, Regular Meeting 

 
Responsible Party: Zia Rifkin, Administrative Services 

 
Attachment(s): Minutes from the August 2022 Regular Meeting 

 
Background: Item B. August 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes Recap: 

Quorum was present to conduct business at the August 2022 meeting and 
the minutes provide a recap of the Delegates’ updates from around the 
region. Charlotte Sullivan was recognized for her service to LOS as the 
Finance Director and presentations were provided by Brad Spiegel with 
MountainBizWorks regarding outdoor Recreation Impact in WNC; a 
Legislative Update from Chris Wall with EQV Strategic; and John Hawthorne 
with Land O’Sky Chapter Trout Umlimited regarding the Economic Impact of 
the French Broad River Watershed. 

 
Staff Recommendation: Recommend approval of the Consent Agenda  

 
Suggested Motion(s): Move to approve the Consent Agenda, as presented. 



Land of Sky Regional Council 
Board of Delegates 

Regular Meeting  
 

August 24, 2022 
 

Minutes 
 

I. Call to Order – Chair Fitzsimmons called the meeting to order at approximately 12:30pm.  
 
II. Silent Invocation – A moment of silence was observed. Chair Fitzsimmons requested that Delegates be 

mindful that Commissioner Gentry is undergoing a medical procedure today. 
 

III. Pledge of Allegiance –Chair Fitzsimmons led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

IV. Roll Call – Nathan Ramsey called the roll. The following members were present: Terri Wells, Tim Love, John 
Mitchell, Matt Wechtel, Jason Chappell, Larry Chapman, Sandra Kilgore, Jonathan Kanipe, Larry Harris, 
Maureen Copelof, Barbara Jeter, Preston Blakely, Barbara Volk, Deb Bridges, Daniel Cobb, Mason Blake, 
Patrick Fitzsimmons, Elisabeth Ervin, Brad Guth, and Bob Tomasulo 
 
Guests Present – Robin Ramsey, Brad Spiegel, John Hawthorne, April Riddle, and Chris Wall 
 
A quorum was present to conduct business. 
 

V. Consent Agenda – The consent agenda, consisting of the Board’s August agenda, which was modified to 
move the legislative update and the minutes of the June 22, 2022, meeting was presented for approval. 
 
Terri Wells moved to approve the consent agenda as modified. The motion received a second, and 
carried upon a roll call vote, and without further discussion. 
 

VI. Swearing in of Officers and Executive Committee Members –  
The Honorable Calvin Hill, Buncombe County Chief District Court Judge, 28th Judicial District administered 
the Oath of Office to the LOSRC Officers and Executive Committee Members elected for FY22/23. 
 
Chair, Honorable Patrick Fitzsimmons, Mayor, Town of Weaverville  
Vice Chair, Honorable Norris Gentry, Commissioner, Madison County Board of Commissioners  
Secretary, Honorable Maureen Copelof, Mayor, City of Brevard 
Treasurer, Honorable Preston Blakely, Mayor, Town of Fletcher  
Past Chair, Honorable Barbara Volk, Mayor, City of Hendersonville 
County Delegate, Honorable Matthew Wechtel, Commissioner, Madison County Board of Commissioners  
Municipal Delegate, Honorable Sandra Kilgore, City Council Member, City of Asheville  
Minority Representative, Honorable Jason Chappell, Chair, Transylvania County Board of Commissioners  
Aging Delegate, Bob Tomasulo, Regional Aging Advisory Council Chair 

 
VII. Chair’s Comments and Delegates Roundtable  

Chair Fitzsimmons requested that Delegates share updates and news of interest in their jurisdictions.  
 
Delegates Roundtable 
Commissioner Terri Wells – Shared that Buncombe County has recently secured over a million dollars for 
conservation work. Additionally, in June, the Commission voted to adopt measures that will be on the ballot 
in November for conservation and affordable housing. 
Manager John Mitchell – Shared that Henderson County has opened its $60 million high school early and 
under budget and work is being done on the Ecusta Trail project. VFW project utilizing ARPA funding has 
renovations underway. The Opioid Settlement funding should have proposals for programs soon through an 
RFP process. Work is underway on a playground and the County is working on many other projects. 



Commissioner Matt Wechtel – Shared that Madison County has many projects going on and he expressed 
appreciation to local representatives in the General Assembly for assistance. Building towards plans for a 
future Judicial Center for the county. Several projects going on including water/sewer projects, and 
renovations are about to start at the high school. 
Commissioner Jason Chappell – Shared that Transylvania County continued their support for the School 
Resource Program staffed by the Sheriff’s Department. Since 2006 the Commission and the Education 
Board have placed Resource Officers within the local school system. SROs are also at BRCC and Brevard 
Academy. The County held a roundtable meeting with AG Stein regarding the Opioid Settlement funding.  
Council Member Sandra Kilgore – Shared that the City of Asheville voted to accept asset foreclosure 
funding which is divided three ways between the State, County and the City. The City utilized the funding to 
procure a DNA analyzer and other needed devices. The City plans to tap into funding to purchase land on 
Tunnel Road for a 100% affordable housing development. 319 Biltmore for a 51-unit mixed use 
development including affordable housing and this is the first time the City has entered into a contract with a 
POC developer. 
Town Manager Jonathan Kanipe – Shared that the Town of Biltmore Forest is finishing up a stream 
restoration project and working on the park masterplan to include new playground equipment. The Town’s 
100th anniversary is coming up in 2023 and plans are being made for the celebration. 
Mayor Larry Harris – Shared that the Town of Black Mountain is working to deploy the ARPA funds and 
getting everything in place to develop those projects. Not all ARPA funds are committed yet, but some 
pricey projects have been undertaken. Working on an update of the Parks/Recreation Plan to assist in 
deploying additional funds for public projects. The Town is also working on the UDO and addressing short-
term rentals and a tree ordinance. He shared too, that the Town is grateful that the community came through 
the pandemic well and work is being done to address some of the issues that resulted from that situation. 
Mayor Maureen Copelof – Shared that the City of Brevard is working on the Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
and public comment events are coming up. The City is addressing healthcare in rural regions by looking at 
what is available, what is needed and what could be improved. The Mayor shared that the City is excited 
about creating the position for an Assistant City Manager. The City is pivoting and going after other funding 
for the Ecusta trail. 
Town Commissioner Barbara Jeter – Shared that the Village of Flat Rock just finished its Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan and is beginning work on the Park/Recreation Plan. The Village received a grant for an 
assistant park manager. Upcoming public hearing for spending the ARPA funding. 
Mayor Preston Blakely – Shared that the Town of Fletcher working on improvements to the Park, including 
the addition of Pickle Ball Courts. 
Mayor Barbara Volk – Shared that the City of Hendersonville is expanding the Fire Station and renovating 
Patton Park including Pickle Ball Courts. Also, the City is well underway on the parking garage downtown 
using pre-formed concrete construction. Looking at a January 2023 opening for that facility, at the earliest or 
March. The City has two plans going on including the Fire Department Strategic Plan and the Apple Festival 
is coming up in September. 
Town Commissioner Deb Bridges – Shared that the Town of Laurel Park is continuing to study stormwater 
guidelines for the UDO for steep and very steep properties. The Town held an invasive plants workshop last 
night with staff from the NC State Cooperative Extension. Some of the invasive plants are really starting to 
be a problem for the municipality. She shared that the Town is encouraging the community to get onboard 
with controlling the invasion. The Town is installing fiber optic cable throughout its jurisdiction, which has 
been a big project. The Parks/Greenway Board and Centennial Committee are continuing to plan and 
spruce up things for the 2025 Centennial. Regarding the Ecusta Trail, the Town’s portion will be completed 
and open for celebration in 2025. The Town Council has considered its vision for the next 100 years and 
have come up with some major projects for the community, leading with a new town hall. Two years ago, 
when the UDO was completed, a new town hall was recommended. The Town has truly outgrown its current 
space and has acquired three acres on Highway 64 and is planning to release RFQs for the engagement of 
an architect and plans to evaluate its current and future space needs. The Town is very excited about this 
development and hopes to complete work in time for its Centennial. 



Manager Daniel Cobb – Shared that the Town of Mills River is doing well with many projects going on 
including new picnic shelters and is pleasantly surprised that everything is ahead of schedule and under 
budget. Hoping to wrap up the work by early fall. The Town already has Pickle Ball Courts (4) open to the 
public and heavily used. 
Town Commissioner Mason Blake – Shared that the Town of Montreat recently converted to a 
commission/manager form of government and is searching for a Town Manager. The Town is updating its 
Comprehensive Plan including public and neighborhood input sessions. The Town is working on a trail 
design for people with handicaps. Passed an ordinance lately dealing with bears and bear hunters to 
address issues caused by hunting around the Town. 
Mayor Patrick Fitzsimmons – Shared that the Town of Weaverville is working on renovations to the park 
including Pickle Ball Courts. 
Town Commissioner Elisabeth Ervin – Shared that the Town of Woodfin is continuing to work on slope/steep 
slope ordinances. Started the application process with a proposal for a large development, which would fall 
under the new ordinances. There’s a White-Water Wave model in Prague and the Town is working through 
the process to address any issues that might occur when a similar model is constructed on the French 
Broad River. 
 
Nathan Ramsey shared that George Morosani has tendered his resignation to the Board after 34 years of 
service. 
 
Economic Development Representative Brad Guth – Shared an update on the governor’s announcement for 
17 jobs and $5 million in investment in Madison County. 
Regional Aging Advisory Council Chair Bob Tomasulo – Shared that the next RAAC meeting is at 10am on 
September 8 in Mills River. Please reach out to LeeAnne Tucker to RSVP. 
 

VIII. Public Comment -  
Chair Fitzsimmons called for public comments. No public comments were made. 
 

IX. Presentations/Recognition –  
A. Recognition of Former Land of Sky Regional Council Finance Director Charlotte Sullivan -  
Chair Fitzsimmons shared the Boards appreciation for her years of work supporting Council. Nathan 
Ramsey remarked on her dedicated service and leadership. He noted that the organization was honored to 
have Patricia Roseburg in the interim position and Charlotte is assisting with the transition. Charlotte 
Sullivan accepter her recognition gracefully. 
 
B. Outdoor Recreation Impact in WNC –  
Brad Spiegel, Building Outdoor Communities Specialist with Mountain BizWorks shared that the nonprofit 
has a brand call Made X MTNS WNC that consists of three pillars- grow the outdoor industry, empower 
regional storytelling, and building outdoor communities. Today’s focus will be on growing the outdoor 
industry. He noted that major funders for this initiative are ARC, DHT and Mountain BizWorks. Growing the 
outdoor industry includes economic development, quality of life, connectivity, equity, stewardship, and 
resilience. Talent attraction, business attraction, and economic development are all included in this program 
area. This is a regional community development initiative for the outdoor industry. Applications can be 
submitted by the counties in the 18-county region by Friday. The project team includes six COGs 
(Southwestern, LOS, Foothills, Western Piedmont, and High Country). The program ends in 2024 and 
during the assessment period, Appalachian State University (ASU) is going to be deploying an outdoor 
economic impact toolkit, providing a strategic recommendations and gap analysis, quarterly 
trainings/workshops to raise the bar and uplift the knowledge sharing component, among other facets of the 
initiative, which are explained throughout the application process. A matching grant program is available to 
communities that have their application selected. Three to eight working groups are envisioned who will 
receive one-on-one guidance on how to address their gaps. The Building Outdoor Communities Program 
launches September 9, 2022 in Boone, NC. The goal is to assist communities to move them to the place to 
advance their outdoor industry. The 7-month cohort work period includes a kick-off meeting the first month, 



monthly meetings, mid-point meeting and wrap up meeting in the seventh month. Applications will serve as 
a baseline for grouping communities into cohorts. 
 
Discussion occurred about the envisioned outcomes of the initiative for the benefit of the communities. 
 
C. Legislative Update –  
Chris Wall, Principal of EQV Strategic shared a legislative update with the Board. He noted that there’s 
some insight into what the future holds for the General Assembly (GA) through December 2022. The budget 
was passed but funding was mostly kicked into next year. One thing not addressed was Medicaid 
Expansion, but it was passed earlier this year by the Senate, then stalled in the House without enough 
votes. It might be possible to come in after the elections to address some of the bigger ticket items and pass 
Medicaid Expansion. Maybe by early in December, the GA would come back in and address additional 
items including lottery gaming in establishments, medical marijuana, etc. Safe to say Republicans would 
maintain majorities in both the House and Senate, cannot say if a supermajority would be attained as a 
result of the elections. With the state being in such good fiscal health, it is hopeful that jurisdictions would be 
the beneficiaries of continued opportunities for additional funding. 
 
Nathan Ramsey shared that LOS and Southwestern appreciates EQV’s advocacy for the western region 
and he wondered if local jurisdictions were advocating for their local needs. Chris Wall noted that the short 
session had an over $6 Billion surplus that could have been allocated but the mood was to adjourn for the 
summer. The new session should bring a renewed focus on supporting local jurisdictions. He shared that 
EQV is always happy to help local jurisdictions through the relationship with the western-most COGs. Now is 
the time for local jurisdictions to ask for what they need. 
 
D. French Broad River Economic Impact –  
John Hawthorne, Conservation Chair, Land O’Sky Chapter Trout Unlimited presented information regarding 
the French Broad River Partnership (FBRP). He shared the importance of healthy, sustainable, 
environmental and economic ecosystems. The FBRP works to maintain and improve stream health within 
the French Broad River watershed for environmental and economic benefits. The watershed is over 300 
million years old, flows for 219 miles, and begins near Rosman. The watershed encompasses 8 counties, 
joins the Holston to create the Tennessee, Ohio, and Mississippi rivers. The watershed is comprised of three 
sub-watersheds including the Upper French Broad River, the Nolichucky river, and the Pigeon River 
Watershed. The river flows north/northwest based on the configuration of the mountains. The majority of the 
Pisgah National Forest, all of Dupont State Forest, 25% of the Great Smoky Mountain National Park and 
75% of the land is forested. It’s also an ecological resource including hellbenders, softshell turtles, pink 
beds, mountain valley bog, and rare fish and other species. Public understanding is the best reason to why 
to study the economic impact of the French Broad Watershed. It’s like any other resource and without the 
proper care, it will degrade. As part of the study, data collection included identifying businesses by NAICS 
Codes in the eight-county region, a survey of visitors and residents was conducted. Study finding included 
that over 7 million people are influenced by the river to come to this region. Annual visitor spending exceeds 
$2.7 billion, and the economic impact is $3.8 billion. Another $273 million in annual federal taxes is 
generated based on 38,554 jobs created or maintained annually. The overall environmental value is $2.9 
billion. Next steps include sharing findings with river-invested groups and individuals, expanding awareness 
among the public about the river’s value, continuing research into other sectors (forestry, agriculture, etc.), 
and designing a multi-year action plan to address primary pollutants of concern. 

 
X. Executive Director’s Report  

Delegates and guests were encouraged to reach out to Nathan Ramsey with any questions or comments 
regarding the report, which is available in the meeting packet. 
 
Nathan Ramsey shared that the organization is starting the strategic planning process and working to 
secure additional funding for the region.  
 

XI. Important Dates –  



A. The next Board of Delegates is September 28, 2022 in-person at the Land of Sky Offices and through 
Zoom. 
 

XII. Adjournment –  
Chair Fitzsimmons adjourned the meeting upon a motion and second of the Delegates as there was no 
further business. 
 
 
 Respectfully submitted by Zia Rifkin 
























